
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

DATE: June 10, 2021 

TIME:  7:00 PM 

PLACE: Zoom 

PURPOSE:   JUNE BOARD MEETING 
 

REGULAR MONTHLY MEETING 
 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 

1. Call to Order

2. Public Comment - Due to COVID-19, all public comment must be submitted in writing prior to the
meeting.

3. Approval of Minutes
A. Meeting Minutes on May 13, 2021 (Pages 2-6)

4. YAMPO Transit Committee
A. GOYORK2045, The 2021 Metropolitan Transportation Plan by Chris Caba
B. RESOLUTION 2118– RECOMMENDATION TO THE YAMPO COORDINATING COMMITTEE

FOR THE APPROVAL OF GOYORK 2045, THE 2021-2045 METROPOLITAN
TRANSPORTATION PLAN FOR YORK COUNTY (Pages 7)

5. Communications
A. Diversity Equity and Inclusion in Public Transportation (Pages 8-12)

6. Treasurer’s Report (Pages 13-21)

7. Resolutions
A. RESOLUTION 2119 – MODIFICATION OF FIXED ROUTE AND EXPRESS MULTI-RIDE PASS

SALES FOR SEPTEMBER 2021 AS PART OF RIDER RECOVERY EFFORTS (Pages 22)
B. RESOLUTION 2120– AUTHORIZING THE AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR FLEET

MANAGEMENT MAINTENANCE SOFTWARE (Pages 23-24)
8. Old Business

9. New Business

10. Future Procurement Activities
A. No Future Procurements

11. Staff Reports

12. Adjournment

Next Meeting:  Thursday, July 8, 2021 



 

 

 

MINUTES OF BOARD MEETING MAY 13, 2021 

 

Upon duly given notice, the monthly Board Meeting of the Central Pennsylvania 
Transportation Authority (CPTA) Board of Directors was held by Zoom on May 13, 
2021. 

Members Present: Raymond Rosen, Darlene Brown, Thomas Wilson, Carrie Gray, Kirk 
Stoner, Annie Strite, Philip Robbins, Richard Carson and Keith Martin. 

Others Attending: Richard Farr, Executive Director; Bonnie Stine, Controller; Jenna 
Reedy, Chief of Staff; Jamie Leonard, Director of Human Resources; Tony Mundy, 
Maintenance Superintendent; Trevor Manahan, Chief Operating Officer rabbittransit; 
Stephen Baldwin, Chief Financial Officer;  Chris Zdanis Chief Operating Officer CAT, 
Fixed Route Operator; Angela Bednar, Executive Assistant CAT.  

Raymond Rosen called the meeting to order at 7:00PM. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 
No Public Comment. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
 
A motion to approve the minutes from the regular CPTA Board of Directors meeting on 
April 8, 2021, was moved by Richard Carson, seconded by Philip Robbins and passed 
unanimously. 

YAMPO TRANSIT COMMITTEE: 
 
Chris Caba, from the York MPO long range planning committee will be presenting 
GOYORK2045, The 2021 Metropolitan Transportation Plan, at the June Board meeting. 
 
COMMUNICATIONS: 

No Communications. 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
TREASURER’S REPORT: 
 
Keith Martin deferred to Steve Baldwin for a review of the financial statements for the 
period ending March 31, 2021.  Highlights of the financial statements were as follows:   

• The last of the CARES Act funds were spent in February and none of the 
American Rescue Plan Act funds have been spent to date.  Regular funding has 
been used and no reserve funds have been spent.  Finance remains optimistic 
that none of the American Rescue Plan Act funds or reserve funds will need to 
be used the remainder of the fiscal year. 

• In the month of March, ridership saw an increase, but it continues to be up and 
down and nowhere near pre-COVID levels. 

 
RESOLUTIONS 
 
RESOLUTION 2112 – APPROVING CONTRACT WITH DETWILER ROOFING, LLC FOR 
THE ROOF REPLACEMENT OF THE BUILDING LOCATED AT 415 ZARFOSS DR. 
 
Motion to approve was raised by Darlene Brown, seconded by Thomas Wilson and 
passed unanimously. 
 
RESOLUTION 2113 – APPROVING THE REVISING OF THE CENTRAL PENNSYLVANIA 
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 
 
Motion to approve was raised by Richard Carson, seconded by Kirk Stoner and passed 
unanimously. 
 
RESOLUTION 2114 – APPROVING THE PENNDOT ACT 44 PERFORMANCE REVIEW 
ACTION PLAN 
 
Motion to approve was raised by Thomas Wilson, seconded by Keith Martin and passed 
unanimously. 
 
RESOLUTION 2115 – ADOPTING THE MANAGEMENT WORK PLAN FOR FISCAL YEAR 
2021/2022 
 
Motion to approve was raised by Thomas Wilson, seconded by Keith Martin and passed 
unanimously. 
 
The 2021/2022 Management Work Plan was presented by Richard Farr.  Highlights of 
the Management Work Plan were as follows: 

• Workforce Continuity, how to retain employees in an area where hiring is difficult, 
Richard Farr stressed the importance of wellness and promoting self-care. 

• Redefining service models and the shift to micromobility was discussed. Northern 
Microtransit has already started to advance with the help of PennDOT and 



 

rabbittransit will continue to work on Franklin Microtransit and the 
Harrisburg/Carlisle Microtransit, which is tied to the 81 corridor workforce 
development.  

 
Bonnie Stine presented the draft budget portion of the Annual Management Work Plan.  
Highlights of the draft budget includes: 

• Impacts of COVID-19 and recovery effects are unknown, but estimated there will 
be a 15-18% recovery over FY2021 levels. 

• All operations have a balanced budget with small amounts of revenues in excess 
of expenditures as a result of non-operating activities such as the Geisinger 
Health Plan project. 

• Projected proposed changes to the FY2021 budget and FY 2021 Projected 
financial information was reviewed. 

• Assume all open and proposed positions would be filled as of July 1, 2021. 
• A COVID-19 recovery period was discussed which includes fixed route service 

performing normal hours, ridership recovery to +15-18% and ongoing sanitizing, 
cleaning and employee protective measures. 

• Economic concerns were discussed which includes supply chain disruption, 
increased costs, and hiring and retention of employees with a potential of 
minimum law changes.   

• All paratransit divisions, in total, have a balanced budget and there will be no fare 
increase budged for this fiscal year.  The Federal Rescue Plan Act will fund all 
paratransit losses in the amount of $1,854,353 

• There will be an increase in the overall grant subsidy of 24% with a large portion 
of this subsidy coming from the Federal Rescue Plan Act.  This budget will 
increase the ACT 44 reserves as of 6/30/2022 by $3,746,646. 

•  Wages were budgeted at 3-4%. 
• Benefits were adjusted to reflect more than anticipated participation in 

rabbittransit’s insurance health plan.  Health insurance premium increase is 
estimated at about 6% for all divisions and services.  All other insurance 
contracts estimated at a 0%-5% increase. 

• Pricing on fuel contracts was primarily flat. 
• Minimal increase in tires due to mileage variations. 
• Training and travel expenses has been increased over FY2021 in anticipation of 

trainings and conferences beginning to be reinstituted. 
• PA DOT Act 44 funds received, used & reserved was presented. 

 
RESOLUTION 2116 – APPROVING THE EXECUTION OF EASEMENT AGREEMENTS WITH 
PEDYC AT THE YORK TRANSFER CENTER PROPERTY 
 
Motion to approve was raised by Richard Carson, seconded by Darlene Brown and 
passed unanimously. 
 
OLD BUSINESS:  
 
No old business.  



 

 
NEW BUSINESS: 

Philip Robbins provided a statement to the board.  “Mr. Chairman, I have some new 
business, Phil. I have really enjoyed meeting in person and I hope someday, perhaps, 
we’ll get back to that.  But, as you may or may not know, my term expires December 
31st, the end of the year.  On Monday, I submitted a letter to our chairman of the board 
who is Brian Allen, that I would be unable to fulfill the remainder of my term.  That 
stemmed from a late, late last week conversation with Gary Eby, whom aligned the 
organization operation of the shared ride program in Perry County.  Frankly wanted me 
to help and make assertions that this program was being mismanaged and that we 
should bring it up to the board.  I declined and submitted my resignation.  I have since 
been informed that Mr. Eby will be appointed to fill my position for the remaining term.  I 
will really miss you guys and ladies, I have been humbled by the folks on this board.” 

FUTURE PROCUREMENT ACTIVITIES: 
 
Fleet management maintenance software resolution to award is targeted for the June 
10th Board meeting. 
 
STAFF REPORTS: 
 
Richard Farr presented the following staff updates to the Board: 

• 2,037 vaccination trips have been completed. 
• Fixed Route service has been completely restored to pre-COVID levels. 
• Triennial review is currently in process and is taking place virtually.  
• Discussed new CDC mask guidelines and the need to still wear masks on the 

buses. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
 
No executive session. 
 

Meeting adjourned at 7:50 PM. 

 
Next Meeting: Thursday, June 10, 2021 
 

 

 



 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

_______________________________       _______________________________ 
Angela Bednar                                              Thomas Wilson 
Executive Assistant         Secretary 
Central Pennsylvania Transportation Authority          Central Pennsylvania Transportation Authority 



RESOLUTION 2118 

RECOMMENDATION TO THE YAMPO COORDINATING COMMITTEE FOR THE 
APPROVAL OF GOYORK 2045, the 2021-2045 Metropolitan Transportation Plan for 

York County 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Central Pennsylvania Transportation Authority 
(CPTA) serves as the Transit Committee for the York Area Metropolitan Planning Organization 
(YAMPO); and,  

WHEREAS, the Transit Committee reviews and recommends transit-related plans and 
projects to the Coordinating Committee of YAMPO as the final decision-making body that acts upon 
recommendations from the Transit Committee; and,  

WHEREAS, YAMPO is required, under 23 CFR Sec. 450.322 Metropolitan transportation 
planning process: Transportation plan to develop a transportation plan addressing at least a twenty 
year planning horizon. The plan shall include both long-range and short-range strategies/actions that 
lead to the development of an integrated intermodal transportation system that facilitates the efficient 
movement of people and goods and to update this plan periodically to confirm its validity and its 
consistency with current and forecasted transportation and land use conditions and trends and to 
extend the forecast period. The transportation plan must be approved by the MPO; and,  

 
WHEREAS, GOYORK 2045, the 2021-2045 Metropolitan Transportation Plan for York County 

is the update to the plan that meets the requirements of 23 CFR Sec. 450.322; and,  
 

 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors that as the Transit 
Committee, it recommends to the YAMPO Coordinating Committee that GOYORK 2045, the 2021-
2045 Metropolitan Transportation Plan for York County be approved. 

 
 

CERTIFICATION OF OFFICERS 

OF 

CENTRAL PENNSYLVANIA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

 I certify that the foregoing is a sound and true copy of a Resolution adopted at a legally convened 
meeting of the Central Pennsylvania Transportation Authority Board Members held on June 10th, 2021. 

 

 

_____________________________  attest:  ____________________________ 

Thomas Wilson     Raymond Rosen 
Secretary                 Chairperson 
       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 































RESOLUTION NO. 2119 
 

 
MODIFICATION OF FIXED ROUTE AND EXPRESS MULTI-RIDE PASS 

SALES FOR SEPTEMBER 2021 AS PART OF RIDER RECOVERY EFFORTS 
 
WHEREAS, the Central Pennsylvania Transportation Authority (CPTA) has experienced 

significant ridership declines as a result of a worldwide pandemic since March 2020; and   
 
WHEREAS, CPTA recently restored fixed route service to pre-pandemic levels on May 

9, 2021, as the Governor of Pennsylvania began to reduce COVID mitigations; and  
 
WHEREAS, CPTA is attempting to restore rider confidence as residents return to 

community activities and businesses expand or resume services; and  
 
WHEREAS, such efforts will include a plan to welcome back riders including a 50% pass 

sale for multi-ride fixed route and rabbitExpress passes during the month of September 2021; 
and  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors that it authorizes the 

modification of fixed route and rabbitExpress multi-ride pass prices for the month of September 
2021.  

 
CERTIFICATION OF OFFICERS 

OF 

CENTRAL PENNSYLVANIA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

 I certify that the foregoing is a sound and true copy of a Resolution adopted at a legally 
convened meeting of the Central Pennsylvania Transportation Authority Board Members held on 
June 10th, 2021. 

 

 

_____________________________  attest:  ____________________________ 

Thomas Wilson     Raymond Rosen 
Secretary                Chairperson 
       
 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 2120 

AUTHORIZING THE AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR FLEET MANAGEMENT 
MAINTENANCE SOFTWARE 

WHEREAS, the Central Pennsylvania Transportation Authority (CPTA) has identified a 
need for fleet management maintenance software to improve on the maintenance operation of 
the transit system and improve operating efficiencies; and, 

WHEREAS,  CPTA identified that a Request for Proposals would be the best method to 
award due to the quality considerations of the various products available on the market that 
required evaluation beyond price; and 

WHEREAS, a joint Request For Proposals was released on March 1, 2021 with the 
Central Pennsylvania Transportation Authority seeking qualified proposals for a five (5) year 
contract to provide fleet management maintenance software and associated professional 
services for the data conversion process and any hardware required to successfully implement 
the solution; and, 

WHEREAS, six (6) responsive proposals were received and each was scored according 
to published criteria by a committee of staff from Capital Area Transit and Central Pennsylvania 
Transportation Authority; and, 

WHEREAS, the firm AssetWorks LLC was judged to be the best value by that committee 
after a complete evaluation process based on the published criteria; and, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Central 
Pennsylvania Transportation Authority to award a contract to AssetWorks LLC in an amount not 
to exceed $140,547.24 to award a five (5) year contract for the proposed solution and 
associated implementation and ongoing maintenance and support. 

CERTIFICATION OF OFFICERS OF 

OF 

CENTRAL PENNSYLVANIA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

I certify that the foregoing is a sound and true copy of a Resolution adopted at a legally convened 
meeting of Central Pennsylvania Transportation Authority Board Members held on June 10, 2021. 
 
 
_____________________________        attest: ____________________________ 
Thomas Wilson      Raymond Rosen 
Secretary      Chairman 
 
 
 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 2120 

AUTHORIZING THE AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR FLEET MANAGEMENT 
MAINTENANCE SOFTWARE 

FACT SHEET 
 

• The Central Pennsylvania Transportation Authority (CPTA) and Capital Area 
Transit (CAT) worked together on a joint procurement for fleet management 
maintenance software due to the developing needs of both authorities.  

• CPTA’s current maintenance software, CFA Software, is beyond useful life and 
has been identified as a high priority capital need by the Maintenance 
department. This is based on identified limitations of the current platform 
comparative to the growth of the agency’s understanding and needs. 

• CAT’s current maintenance software, TransTrack Systems Inc, is still within its 
contract term, but is due to expire within the near future and provides an 
opportunity to align both CPTA and CAT on the same software for future and 
ongoing operational efficiencies. Signing this agreement at this time will permit 
for the timely data conversion and migration to the new solution. 

• Scoring of the proposals was based on evaluation of four (4) criterion: Proposer’s 
Qualifications and Experience, Assessment of Maintenance Software 
Capabilities, Approach to Implementing, Supporting and Training, and Pricing. 
The highest total scoring vendor was viewed as the top-ranked vendor. Scores 
for each submitting vendor are identified below. 

VENDOR TOTAL SCORE 
ASSETWORKS 612.20 
AVAIL 507.80 
DOSSIER 603.80 
FASTER 592.90 
RTA 494.00 
TRANSTRACK 503.90 

 

• The not to exceed value identified in the resolution is based on the vendor’s 
proposal ($127,770.22), with an additional 10% contingency value to permit 
flexibility relative to unforeseen costs or expanded training and implementation 
support. The value included in the contract agreement with the vendor will be 
based on the proposed contract value. 


	Agenda June Board Meeting
	May Board Meeting Minutes
	Resolution YAMPO  Recommendation for Approval of MTP 062021
	doc07851720210608095759
	doc07844220210607073617
	RESOLUTION rabbit pass sale
	RESOLUTION NO 2117- Fleet Management Maintenance Software (CAT)
	CERTIFICATION OF OFFICERS OF
	OF
	CENTRAL PENNSYLVANIA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
	FACT SHEET





